SiteBuilder User Guide



SiteBuilder Manual

Table of contents

SiteBuilder Manual	2
Table of contents	2
What is SiteBuilder?	4
Tips for building a great site	4
Getting started	4
Templates and Designs	4
Templates	5
Editing or changing templates on an existing site	5
Multi-page and Express templates	5
Design	6
Navigating SiteBuilder	7
Using the picture gallery	11
Adding and editing text	13
Adding new text to the page	13
Editing existing text	14
Using the text editor	14
Adding Images to your website	16
Adding Hyperlinks	17
Site Add-ons	18
What add-ons are available?	18
Adding your Site Add-On to the page	21
Working with tables	22
Adding a new table	23
Adding content to your table	25
Editing your table	25
Copying, moving, and deleting items	27
Copying and moving items	27
Deleting items	28
Creating new pages	28
Site navigation	29
Changing the appearance of the navigation menu	30
Using images on your navigation menu	31
Adding keyword and description MetaTags	32
Publishing your site	33
Previewing your site	33
Publishing the site	33

Working with multiple sites	
Creating a new site	
Publishing another site	
Promoting your site	35
Choose your keywords carefully	
Add a Site Map	
Promote your site	
Troubleshooting	
_	

What is SiteBuilder?

SiteBuilder is an easy to use website creation tool, allowing you to design and build a great looking website effortlessly and easily without any technical skills.

Tips for building a great site

Although with SiteBuilder you can design and build your website "on the fly", by spending some time planning your site you can dramatically improve the overall design and feel. Before you start creating your website, consider the following questions:

- What is the purpose of your site? Do you just want to share information between friends, drive sales to your business, or to improve your business' online presence?
- What information do you want to provide for your visitors?

It's also a good idea to visit some of your favourite sites and note what you like and dislike about each site. Keep all this information in mind as you start to plan your own site.

At this point, you may want to sketch an informal site map. A site map is a rough list of the pages you would like to use in your site, how they will link to each other, and a brief description of what content you'll provide on each page. A little time here can save you a lot of time later on!

Getting started

By now you will have an idea about how you would like your website to look and feel, with this in mind we can get started using the SiteBuilder interface and start building your website.

Templates and Designs

While at first glance, templates and designs appear to do the same thing, there are differences in how they work and can be used. *Templates* control the content, layout and pages of your sites, while *designs* control the graphics, fonts, colours and general look and feel of your site.

Templates

This allows you to use a template and create your website, without the need to think about design elements such as colours and fonts, until later on.

There are 8 different templates you can use to create the website you want. Each template coming with a large number of designs.

2 column 1 column Home 📖 heading ⊐heading ∎heading This is the standard home page layout. _____ _____ runner]runner runner 3 column 2 column offset Photo album 🗆 heading ∎heading ∎ heading _ _ ____ ___ ___ ∎runner ∎runner runner Main area 2 secondary Main area 1 secondary 🔲 heading ∎ heading _ _____ ____ _____ ____ ∎runner ∎runner

The template layouts you can choose from are as follows:

Editing or changing templates on an existing site

To change the template on an existing web page simply view the web page in SiteBuilder and click **Change Look** then **Change the layout** to view a list of new templates.

Multi-page and Express templates

When you first log into SiteBuilder you will be offered three options:

• Start with a multi-page template

- Start from scratch with a blank site
- Start with an Express Site template

Express Sites: This is the quickest way of getting a website online. This will create a short 1 page website. Just select what you would like to do, answer some questions then select a design to get a webpage published in minutes.

Multi-page template: This allows you to create a multipage website quickly and easily. Select how you want to use your site. Then select what you would like to have on each page. SiteBuilder will then select templates for each page you require. Choose a design, and then add your content.

Blank Site: This way allows you to fully customise your site from the start.

Quick tip: Even if you select an express site, or multipage site you can fully customise this again at a later date. If this is a new website, create a quick Express site to show that your website is coming soon. Then replace this with your complete website whenever you are ready.

Once you have chosen the template you want for your website, you can select a design to match.

Design

Designs control the graphics, fonts, colours and the general look and feel of your website, with over 300 designs it's easy to find one that will suit you.

To help you choose a design, they have been split into different categories, select the category that suits your website and browse through the available designs. Remember, you can always change the design at a later date of you want.





Navigating SiteBuilder

When you first log into SiteBuilder you will be asked if you want to create a new website. Once you have created a site, each time you log into SiteBuilder you will be directed to the "all my sites" page. This page will show you all of the sites you have created within your SiteBuilder control panel.

Ketterullter		
home	email support	to logout, use the button on the toolbar below
All My Sites for lardeedardeedar-ukl1670 Click a site name to edit, or click a UBL to view a	published site	Your domain name: http://www.rajohonewdomainname2.com/ te Promotion
Blank (Start From Scratch) Site settings Last adhed: 4/24/09 Not published Site settings Last adhed: 4/24/09 Not published Site settings		Announce Your Site Let customers, friends, and convorkers know about your new site or recent hanges: use this form to send email with a link back to your site.
Create a new site: Choose a template	Get	
Help & Tips • Support Central: Access our Tips of the Day, F Tutorials or Customer Support Staff. • Guide for New Users • Eate Your SiteBuilder Experience • Pictures not displaying properly? Click here for h		



Under each website you will also be informed when each site was last edited and published.

My Personal Site	e Not published			<u>Site settings</u>
Create a new site:	Choose a template	*	Go!	

It can be useful to have a duplicate copy of your website within SiteBuilder. This way you can update one copy of your website while keeping an unaltered copy as a backup if required.



Note: While you can have several websites created within SiteBuilder you are only able to publish one website at a time.

At the foot of the screen is a toolbar with links to other sections of SiteBuilder.



All my sites toolbar:

Name	Description
Web Site Tools	This shows you additional options for building your website. At
	the time of release this contains links to site promotion and to
Web Site	Advanced Options. However this may change as more tools
10015	become available.
Advanced	This screen provides you with an overview of your websites and
Options	all the other files (picture gallery's etc) that you have uploaded
	with SiteBuilder. From here you can see how much space is
Advanced	used by each of these sections. You can also delete a website,
Options	or make a copy of an existing site from this screen.
Disk Space	Shows you how much disk space your websites and gallery are
	using. You can also delete a website, or create a duplicate copy
Disk	of an existing website.
Space	
Picture Gallery	The picture gallery is a special area where you can upload
2	images for your website. The picture gallery is explained in more
Picture Gallery	detail later. From this screen you can view all images uploaded
	to your gallery, and delete any images that you don't need any
	more.
Site Promotion	The Site Promotion screen allows you to send an email to
~	interested parties once you have published your website. This
Site	email, will contain a link to your website.
Log Out	Will log you out of the SiteBuilder control panel.
⊷ ∰	
Log Out	
Holp	Shows additional help files and support on SiteBuilder Note:
	Some of the features described in these help files are not
?	available within your version of SiteRuilder
Help	

If you click on your website you will be taken to the edit page screen. From here you can add and remove email content, or change the website design and layout. The toolbar on this edit page screen has a number of options that are not available on other screens.



Edit webpage toolbar

Name	Description
Add Text	Add text to your site. SiteBuilder features a rich text editor which allows you to enter and format your additional content.
Add picture	Add images from your picture gallery to your page. You can choose an image you have already uploaded, or upload and use a new picture on your website.
Add link	Add a hyperlink to another page on your site, or to another URL on an external site elsewhere on the internet. You can even create a mail link, which will open your visitor's email software on their computer so they can send an email to an address you have specified.
Add table	Add a table to your page to display data or help your page layout. There is a table gallery that lets you choose from ready-made tables, or create your own from scratch.
Site Add-ons	Displays buttons on your website where you can add additional features. These features are explained in more detail later in this manual.
Add page	Add a new page to your site. The new page wizard allows you to select the template for the web page, and how the new page should appear within the navigation bar.
Change look	This option allows you to change the template, change the design, or to edit the existing design. You can choose to change only the page you are on, or all the pages within your website.
Move Items	Move content or images from one area of your web page to another quickly and easily.
Copy items	Copy content or images from one area of your web page to another quickly and easily.
Delete Items	This option allows you to delete content or images on your web page.
Preview Site	Opens your site in a new window so that you can preview what it will look like when it is published.

Publish to Web	Publish your site to the internet with the click of a button.
Publish to Web	
Promote Site	The Site Promotion screen allows you to send an email with a
€	link to your site to interested parties once you have published
Promote Site	your website.
Site Organiser	Provides and overview of each webpage on your site, allowing
	you to rename, copy, or delete a page on your site. You can also
Site Organizer	change the site navigation or the design of a particular web page.
All my Sites	Returns you to the All my Sites page detailed above. This page
	shows you each of the websites you have created in SiteBuilder,
All My Sites	and shows which sites have been published and when each site
	was last edited.
Log Out	Will log you out of the SiteBuilder control panel.
-	
Log Out	
Help	Shows additional help files and support on SiteBuilder. Note:
?	Some of the features described in these help files are not
Help	available within your version of SiteBuilder.

While you will be spending a lot of time on the edit page screen, most modern websites also have a large number of images and yours can too. With this in mind you may also spend some time within your picture galleries.

Using the picture gallery

The picture gallery is a single segment of SiteBuilder where you can upload, manage and delete your images. Images must be uploaded into a picture gallery before you can add them to your website

You can access the Picture Gallery by clicking the **Picture Gallery** icon at the bottom of the page.

Quick tip: When we say you must upload an image, this is essentially making a copy of an image from your personal computer to the SiteBuilder control panel. By default, SiteBuilder includes two picture galleries. You can, however, create more galleries to manage and maintain your pictures if needed. This is useful for when you start to grow your site and more images are uploaded.

When you navigate to the picture gallery, you will see a screen as follows.

home	email support	to logout, use the button on the toolbar below
Ny Pictures		
C Picture Gallery		
Picture Gallery		Change to Text View
1. Choose a Gallery: - General - 💌	Manage Galleries	
2. Below are the pictures in this gallery. To "Bulk Picture Upload" button to launch a bul	upload additional pictures click on "Simple Pictu k uploader tool.	re Upload" button or
3. Select pictures by clicking the checkboxe	s, then click the button to Delete or Move the pi	ictures.
You have not uploaded any pictures into this g	allery yet. To add pictures, click the "Upload picture	's" button.
To upload a picture, click the "Upload pictures" b	utton. To delete a picture, click "Delete."	Durie All Majo

From this screen, you can view your galleries, or upload images into a gallery of your choice. When uploading images, you can choose to upload them individually, or in bulk.

To upload images individually select **Single Picture Upload**, and to upload multiple images at the same time select **Bulk Picture Upload**. You will need a recent version of Java installed on your computer to use the bulk upload option, whereas the single picture upload will work with all computers.

Important: Before you upload any images, make sure their filename contains only numbers and letters. Filenames that contain spaces, full stops, or special characters (such as !"£\$%^&*) may not load correctly.

If you choose to upload images individually you can also create a new gallery to store your images within. Select an existing gallery from the drop down menu, or enter the name of your new gallery in the text box provided.

My Pictures
🕅 <u>Picture Gallery</u> > Upload A Picture
Upload images
Create your own Gallery (optional): [layout-and-navigation] – General – 🛛 🔽 Or select one from the menu

To upload an image, click on the **Browse** button provided then navigate to the image on your local machine.

1.			
	Select a file:	Browse_	
Renan	ne this file to:		
		(File names may not contain spaces)	
		In case of duplicates it's ok to overwrite.	
0	Quick tip: Yo	ou can upload up to ten images at the same time	using this

You can upload .gif, .jpg, .jpeg and .zip files to your picture gallery.

Quick tip: Keep an eye on the file size for each image. Large photographs can take up a lot of space within your SiteBuilder control panel and will slow your site down as visitors attempt to view them. It is good practice to keep images as small as possible.

Click **Done** when you have chosen all files. It may take a short time to upload the images.

Adding and editing text

Each template comes complete with pre-populated content that you can edit. Alternatively you can enter new text in any section that you want.

Adding new text to the page

- Step 1 Click the Add Text icon.
- Step 2 You will see several Add it here buttons on the page to show where text can be added. Click one of these buttons to choose where to place your text.



- Step 3Use the text editor to enter your text. You can format the text, change the text colour,
add images, and much more. For more information see Using the text editor below.
- Step 4 Click Done when you are happy with your text. You can change it again at any time.

Editing existing text

Step 1To edit any existing text, click the Edit Text button next to the section of text you want
to edit. This will bring up the text editor.

Everyone else has a web site, <u>so I figure</u>d, why not me too? On this site I'll describe mysel share my interests and ideas Edit text

- **Step 2** Make your changes using the text editor.
- Step 3 Click Done to save your changes.

Using the text editor

The text editor allows you to enter and format text into your website. It is a graphical interface that is similar in layout to other text editors such as word.

The interface

The interface of the text editor should be familiar, as it is similar to word processors (such as Microsoft Word) and email software (such as Microsoft Outlook or Windows Mail).

B Z U ASC Font family ▼ Font size - ▼ 3 10 ×, × ∞ ※ 2 Ω O ∞ X A A C A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A	
Hi, welcome to my site!	
Path: div	1.

The first toolbar contains buttons for formatting your text, changing the font and text colour, inserting links, and adding pictures and special characters.

The second toolbar allows you to copy and paste text, search for text within the editor, align text, create bullet and numbered lists, indent text, undo recent changes, edit the HTML source for your code, and check your spelling.

Quick tip: It is recommended that you don't copy text directly from Microsoft Word, because it contains extra formatting information which is not compatible with SiteBuilder. In these cases it's a good idea to copy the text into Notepad first, which will stop any errant characters entering your website.

There is also a third toolbar which is hidden by default. You can view the toolbar by clicking the **Show/Hide advanced features** button on the right of the first toolbar.



The Advanced features toolbar provides some extra features, such as the ability to add and modify tables, horizontal rules, and anchors.

The spell checker

The spell checker can be switched on and off from the **Toggle Spellchecker** button on the second toolbar. If enabled any spelling mistakes it locates will be underlined with a red wavy line. Click the word to see a menu of alternative words to choose from.

Hi,	welcohme <mark>t</mark> e	o my sitee!
	Suggestions	
	welcome	
	welcomer	
	welcomed	
	welcomes	
	welcomely	
	Ignore word	
	Ignore all	

You can change the language used by the spell checker by clicking the down-facing arrow next to the **Toggle spellchecker** button.



Adding Images to your website

You can add images to your website by clicking the **Add Picture** button in the edit page toolbar at the foot of the screen. Once you have pressed this, a number of buttons will appear within your web page. Click where on your web page you would like to add your image.

Once you have selected where you would like to insert your image you will be taken to the picture gallery screen. Select the picture gallery you would like to choose your images from in the drop down menu provided.

Picture Gallery



At the foot of the screen is a list of the images that you have already uploaded to your picture gallery. If you want to add a picture that you have already uploaded, tick the box under the picture, then click **Choose Pictures**.



If you have not yet uploaded the image to your picture gallery yet you can do so now

by clicking **Simple Picture Upload**. Full details on uploading images can be found in the picture gallery chapter.

Once you have selected your image you will see a final page that will allow you to see how it is to be displayed. There are a number of options on this screen:

- **Display size**: Allows you to control how big you want the image to appear on your website.
- Alignment: Choose the alignment of the image within your web page and how close to the picture you would like the text to display.
- **Title and caption**: Any text you add to the title will be displayed above your image, while anything that you enter in the caption text box will be displayed below the image. ALT Text is text that will be displayed in the event that the picture cannot be viewed on the website.
- **Picture frame**: Allows you to add a border around your image.
- **Picture Linking**: You can add links from your image from this section. You can link your picture to another web page, another website, or to a larger version of the image.

Once you have decided how the image is to be displayed on your site, click **Done** to insert the image to your website.

Adding Hyperlinks

A hyperlink is a clickable link which will direct your visitors to another page on your site, or another web address anywhere on the internet. You can also create an email link which, when your visitor clicks it, will open their email software and allow them to send an email to a predefined email address.

- Step 1 Click the Add link button on the toolbar at the foot of the page.
- Step 2 Choose where you would like to place the link by clicking an Add it here button.
- Step 3 You will then be asked to select what type of link you would like to create from the following options:
 - To another web page (URL) Enter a web address for any site on the web
 - *To a mail message* Specify an email address, and when your visitors click the link their email software will open so they can contact you.
 - To another page in this site Select any other web page in your site.
- Step 4 On the next screen, enter the text you would like to be displayed for the link on your

page.

Depending on the option you chose in Step 3 you will also be asked to type a web address or email address, or select from a list of your existing pages.

If you are creating a link to another website you can also set the page to open in a new window so your visitor doesn't lose your website.

- Step 5 If you want to change the formatting options for your link, you have the option to change the font, the size, and the alignment of your link. You can also emphasize the text by making it bold, italic, or underlined.
- Step 6 Click Done to add the link to your page.

Site Add-ons

Site Add-Ons provide an excellent way to extend the capabilities of your website. You can insert contact forms, a guestbook, page counters, videos, a site map, news and RSS feeds, search fields, coupons, and much more all at the click of a button.

What add-ons are available?

The following add-ons are available through SiteBuilder, and are divided into four main categories.

Business Tools

- PayPal: Accept online payments with PayPal
- *Coupon Builder*. Create coupons for your customers to print out and receive discounts.
- *Forms*: Create a form so your customers can contact you directly from the website.
- Amazon Item Listing: List products from the Amazon website, and receive money via their affiliate program if anyone makes a purchase after clicking the link on your site.

Multimedia

- *Photo Gallery*: Add a photo gallery of thumbnails, which can be clicked to reveal the full size image.
- Sound: Add audio to your site.
- Video: Add a video.
- Flash: Add an Adobe Flash animation to your site.
- File Download: Provide a link for your visitors to download a file.
- *Add Your Own HTML*: Extend the possibilities further by adding your own HTML code. This is recommended for advanced users only.

Important: If you have chosen an Add-on that requires you to upload a file, such as sound, video, or Flash, make sure the filename contains only numbers and letters. Filenames that contain spaces, full stops, or special characters (such as !"£\$%^&*) may not load correctly.

Interactive Features

- *Weather Viewer*: Display the current weather conditions, and allow visitors to check their local area.
- *People Search*: Ideal for personal websites, allow your visitors to find and connect with other internet users.
- Guestbook: Add a guestbook for your visitors to sign.
- Lycos Search: Web search using the Lycos search engine.
- *Site Search*: Add a search box to allow visitors to search your site, or the web.
- Hotbot Search: Allow your users to search using the Hotbot search engine.

Cool Content

- Moreover News Feed: Add news headlines from Moreover's website.
- Date and Time Stamp: Add the current date and time.
- *Page Counter*: A count of all visitors to the page, which automatically updates each time the page is loaded.
- Animated Cursors: Add an animated cursor.
- *Auto Last Updated Stamp*: Keep your customers informed of site changes by adding a date and time stamp, which automatically updates each time you publish the site.
- Site Map: Add links to all pages on your site to aid navigation and help

improve your search engine rankings.

- Loan Calculator: Add a loan calculator to your site.
- *Mortgage Calculator*. Add a mortgage calculator to your site.
- RSS Feed: Display a regularly updating RSS feed on your website.

Adding your Site Add-On to the page

- Step 1 Click Site Add-Ons at the foot of the page.
- Step 2 Choose a location on the page by clicking an Add it here button.

· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
1	Add it hare
Add it here	Add it here
As I'm designing this site in sitebuilder, while explaining how to create a sirte in sitebuilder I may get slightly confused along the way. But I'm sure it will all work out well in the end. Add take	Dont just take our word for it, watch this Video to see how quickly you can create a website yourself
This page is classed as a "1 column template", when you start creating your website, you can choose a degign and template from the start wizard. The design controls the graphics, fonts and colours of ytour website, while the templates will allow you to choose the yourself name lavour.	Add It here Is this the Fastest Website in the world?
Addit here	Add it: here
	Add it here
Add it here	
This site will also provide tips and tricks for designing a great website, and show you some additional techniques for g Add it was	etting the most out of sitebuilder.

Step 3 Choose a category from the list. You can switch between categories with the tabs at the top of the page.

Recommended Business Tools Multimedia Interactive Features Cool Content
🖏 Site Add-Ons
Site Add-Ons
What are Site Add-Ons? You can use Site Add-Ons to provide value for your visitors, to make money, or to add to your site's professional appearance. Some Site Add-Ons save you from having to add complicated HTML code to your site by hand; others help you set up arrangements with other web sites or applications.
Click one of the tabs above, or select from the categories below to browse the Site Add-Ons gallery:
Recommended Business Tools Multimedia Interactive Features Cool Content
Want to attract more visitors to your site or find out more about them? When you're done here, click the "Promote Site" toolbar button.

Step 4 Find the add-on you would like to include on your page and click its Add link.

Forms

Add More Info To add a form to your web site select from the gallery. Fully customize the form including changing colors and adding additional elements.

Full name: 🗌 Email: 🗌	
Comments:	N N
1	Clear Submit

Table Gallery

Add More Info Draw attention to a product or hot news item by choosing a table from the gallery -- add your own

B Photos To Ge	

Amazon Item Listing

Add More Info Amazon Associates can display products from Amazon on their web site and earn money when visitors make purchases.

text and pictures and choose background colors.



Step 5 You will be presented with the options required to configure your selected add-on. These vary depending on the add-on you have selected. If you require assistance simply click the Help icon at the bottom of the window.



Quick tip: More information on adding the most popular add-ons is available online at http://www.yourwebsiteandemail.com/sitebuilder/.

Step 6 Click Done to insert your new add-on into your page.

You can edit the configuration at any time by clicking the **Edit Site Add-On** button underneath the add-on.



Working with tables

Tables are a useful way of displaying data, and can also be used to help you lay out elements on your page. They can be fully customised, and SiteBuilder also includes a Table Gallery which contains various predefined templates to help you match your table to the style of your website.

Adding a new table

Adding a table to your page couldn't be easier.

Step 1 Click **Add Table** at the foot of the page.

Step 2 You will see several Add it here buttons on the page to show where your table can be added. Click one of these buttons to choose where to place your table.

	Add it bare
 Add it here	Add it here
 As I'm designing this site in sitebuilder, while explaining how to create a site in sitebuilder I may get slightly confused along the way. But I'm sure it will all work out well in the end.	Dont just take our word for it, watch this Video to see how quickly you can create a website yourself
 This page is classed as a "1 column template", when you start creating your website, you can choose a degign and template from the start wizard. The design controls the graphics, fonts and colours of ytour website, while the templates will allow you to choose the overall page layout.	Add it here Is this the Fastest Website in the world?
 Add it here	Add it have
	Rdd it here
Add it here	
his site will also provide tips and tricks for designing a great website, and show you some additional technigues for g Additional Additional	etting the most out of sitebuilder.

Step 3 You will have the option to base your new table on a predefined template, or to create a new table from scratch.



Step 4 This step will differ depending on whether you choose to create your table from the gallery or build your own.

Choose from the gallery

Choose a design by clicking the **Choose** button under your preferred table.

	Class	S		Location
11/02	Selec Descri	ting Plants ption, desc	s ription.	Classroom
	descri	ption		212
	Intro t	o Gardeni	ng	Classroom
11/04	Description, description		ription,	114
	aescri	ption	-	
11/10	Lands	caping: H	ow Io	Back
11/10	descri	ption, desc	inpuon,	Courtyard
		(Ch	oose	
Dav		Timo	Class	
Day Monda		Time	Class	ning: How To
Day Monda	iy av	Time 10:00am	Class Landsca	ping: How To
Day Monda Tuesda	iy ay	Time 10:00am 10:00am	Class Landsca Intro to C	ping: How To Gardening
Day Monda Tuesda Wedne	iy ay esday	Time 10:00am 10:00am 10:00am	Class Landsca Intro to C Selecting	ping: How To Gardening g Plants
Day Monda Tuesda Wedne Thursd	ay ay esday lay	Time 10:00am 10:00am 10:00am	Class Landsca Intro to C Selecting Landsca	ping: How To Gardening g Plants ping: How To
Day Monda Tuesda Wedne Thursd Friday	ay ay esday lay	Time 10:00am 10:00am 10:00am 10:00am	Class Landsca Intro to C Selecting Landsca Selecting	ping: How To Gardening g Plants ping: How To g Plants
Day Monda Tuesda Wedne Thursd Friday	ay ay esday lay	Time 10:00am 10:00am 10:00am 10:00am	Class Landsca Intro to C Selecting Landsca Selecting	ping: How To Sardening g Plants ping: How To g Plants
Day Monda Tuesda Wedne Thursd Friday	iy ay esday lay	Time 10:00am 10:00am 10:00am 10:00am	Class Landsca Intro to C Selecting Landsca Selecting	ping: How To Sardening g Plants ping: How To g Plants
Day Monda Tuesda Wedne Thursd Friday	iy ay esday lay	Time 10:00am 10:00am 10:00am 10:00am	Class Landsca Intro to C Selecting Landsca Selecting	ping: How To Sardening g Plants ping: How To g Plants

The table will be added to your page. You can now customise the design fully and add your own content.

Build your own

You can customise your new table with the following options:

- Number of columns: Choose how many columns your table will have.
- Number of rows: Choose how many rows your table will have.
- *Table border*. You can choose if your table has a border. You can also set the width and colour.
- *Cell padding*: This will add space between the table cells and the border of the table.
- Cell border: Choose if each table cell will also have its own border.
- *Table width*: Choose how wide your table will appear on the page. This can be a percentage of the page (your table will resize if the browser is resized) or a set number of pixels.
- *Printer friendly version*: Show a link to a version of the table that can be easily printed.
- *Text settings*: Set the font, text size and colour, and other text formatting options.



Quick tip: You can change these settings at any time after the table has been created.

Click **Done** to add the table to your page.

Adding content to your table

When adding content (such as text, links, images, and site add-ons) to your page, you will see an **Add it here** button in each available cell of your table. Simply select the relevant button and your content will be placed within the table.

Editing your table

There are several options to customise your table, such as the ability to change the appearance of your table, add new rows or columns, or modify the height of rows or width of columns within the table.

Step 1 Click on Edit table under the table you wish to modify.

Date Edit text	Class Edit text	Location Edit text
11/02 Edit text	Selecting Plants Edit text Description, description, description Edit text	Classroom 212 Edit text
11/04 Edit text	Intro to Gardening Edit text Description, description, description Edit text	Classroom 114 <mark>Edit text</mark>
11/10 Edit text	Landscaping: How To <mark>Edit text</mark> Description, description, description <mark>Edit text</mark>	Back Courtyard Edit text
Edit table		

Step 2 There are a large number of table options, so we'll break them down into sections.

Columns and rows



- Add column: Add new columns to your table
- Set column widths: You can specify exact widths or percentage widths for your columns.

• *Add row*: Add new rows to your table.

	🗛 🏖 📑 =	<u>A</u> 🏖 📑 ==	A 🏖 🗾 =
	Merge: 🖶 🗭	Merge: 🖶 🕈	Merge: ♣
A 2 =	11/04	Intro to Gardening Description, description,	Classroom 114
	_A 🏖 📑 =	_A 🏖 📑 =	_A. 🂁 📑 득
	Merge: 🕈	Merge: 🕈	Merge:
A 🖉 🖃	11/10	Landscaping: How To Description, description,	Back Courtyard

Formatting

- Duplicate or delete rows and columns: Allows you to create a copy or delete the selected row or column.
- A 🖄 🖻 Colours and alignment: Change the text or background colour, and the horizontal and vertical alignment of text within the cell.
- Insert picture: Insert a picture from your Picture Gallery into the selected cell.
- Merge: ♣ ➡ Merge cell: Merge the selected cell into the cell directly underneath or to the right.

Table options

- *Table border*: Choose whether your table has a border, and set its width and colour.
- Cellpadding: Add space between the table cells and the border of the table.
- Cell border. Choose if each table cell will also have its own border.
- *Table background color*. Set a colour for the table background.
- *Table width*: Choose how wide your table will appear on the page. This can be a percentage of the page (your table will resize if the browser is resized) or a set number of pixels.
- *Printer friendly version*: Show a link to a version of the table that can be easily printed.
- *Text settings*: Set the font, text size and colour, and other text formatting options.

When you have finished, click **Done** to save your changes.

Copying, moving, and deleting items

From time to time you may want to copy, move, or delete items (such as text, links, images, site add-ons, and tables) from your page. SiteBuilder provides some useful tools for achieving this.

Copying and moving items

Step 1 Click on either the **Move Items** or **Copy Items** buttons at the foot of the page.



Step 2Tick the boxes to the right of the items you would like to copy or move and clickContinue. You can select several items at the same time.



Step 3 Select where you would like to place the items by clicking a Copy it here or Move it here button. You can copy or move items to another location on the same page, or you can use your page navigation to select a location on another page in your site.

Deleting items

Step 1 Click on the Delete Items button at the foot of the page.



Step 2 Tick the boxes to the right of the items you would like to delete and click **Done**. You can delete several items at the same time.



The items you selected will be removed from the page.

Important: It is not possible to recover deleted items.

Creating new pages

Adding a new page in SiteBuilder couldn't be easier.

Step 1 Click on Site Organiser at the foot of the page.

Step 2 Click on Add Page.



- Step 3 Enter a title for the new page, and whether you would like it to appear on your Navigation Bar or not.
- **Step 4** Click **Done** to add the new page.

Note: Depending on your SiteBuilder plan you may be limited to the number of pages you can add. If you receive a warning message informing you that you have reached your page allowance, you may need to upgrade your SiteBuilder plan.

Site navigation

SiteBuilder makes it very easy to create a full set of navigation options, without taking up too much room on the page.

You can create submenus that popup when the mouse is moved over an items parent entry, allowing you to divide your site up into a few segments. You can also customise the appearance of the Navigation menu.

Step 1 Click on the Site Organiser icon at the bottom of the page.

Step 2 Click on Navigation Bar Properties.



Navigation Bar Properties Rearrange the Navigation Bar, display text links or upload your own images. <u>Customer Access</u> Grant customers access to password protected pages in your web site.

Step 3 You can re-order your navigation as you wish by dragging the boxes. If you place a box under another, slightly indented, then it will appear as a popup when the mouse is moved over its parent page.

Pages shown in the Navigation Bar

Home	
About me	
Contact me 🚓	<u>!</u>
Site Map	

Pages not shown in the Navigation Bar

In the example above the "*Contact me*" page is being dragged under the "*About me page*". Because it is indented it will appear as a popup menu option when the visitor hovers over "*About me*" in the navigation menu.

If you don't want a page to be displayed on the navigation bar, simply drag it across to the *Pages not shown in the Navigation Bar* box on the right of the page.

Step 4 When you are finished click Done.

Changing the appearance of the navigation menu

You can change the font and text colour of your Navigation bars. The options you can change may depend on the template you have chosen for your site.

- Step 1 Click Change Look at the bottom of the page.
- Step 2 Choose the option to Edit your existing design.
- Step 3 Scroll down to the section titled Navigation. You will see several options for changing the text appearance.
 - Text color for the navigation links: Change the colour of the links.
 - Selected page text color for navigation links: Change the colour of the selected page in the menu.
 - *Background color of navigation submenus*: Change the background colour of the popup sub menus.
 - *Text color of navigation submenus*: Change the colour of the text on the navigation sub menus.
 - *Rollover Background color of navigation submenus*: Change the background colour of the link when the mouse hovers over it. This only applies to the popup sub menus.
 - Rollover text color of navigation submenus: Change the text colour of the link

when the mouse hovers over it. This only applies to the popup sub menus.

Page Header
Navigation
Text color for the navigation links: Black Charcoal White Select another color Reset to default
Selected page text color for navigation links: Black Charcoal White <u>Select another color</u> <u>Reset to default</u>
Background color of navigation submenus: White Silver Black Select another color Reset to default
Text color of navigation submenus:
Rollover Background color of navigation submenus: white Silver Black <u>Select another color</u> <u>Reset to default</u>
Rollover text color of navigation submenus: Black Charcoal White Select another color Reset to default
Main Area

Step 4 Click Done to save your changes.

Using images on your navigation menu

If you want to use your own images, rather than text, in the navigation menus you can do so. There are several benefits to this method:

- The font you use doesn't need to be installed on the end user's machine, so you can be a lot more creative with your menus. With a text menu you are limited to only a few fonts that are installed on all machines.
- You can incorporate icons or images. •
- You can use several colours and text effects such as drop shadow and • gradients (if your image editing software supports these).

Click on Site Organiser at the bottom of the page. Step 1

Step 2 Click on Navigation Bar Properties.

Site Settings View additional site options, including adding a blog or product catalog to your site site.

Customer Access Grant customers access to password protected pages in your web site.

Step 3Click the Select button images link at the top of the page under the title.Navigation bar properties

Change the Navigation Bar properties for your web site. <u>Change look</u> Select button images

- **Step 4** You will now see each item in your navigation menu, along with three image options for each:
 - Default image: Select the image to display for this item.
 - Rollover image: (Optional) If you want the image to change when the mouse is hovered over it, you can specify the image here.
 - Selected image: (Optional) If you want a different image to display for the selected page, then specify it here.

Click a "Picture Gal	lery" button to select an	image:	8
"Home" page:	Default image:	Rollover image: (Optional)	Selected image: (Optional)
	Home	Home	Home
	Picture Gallery Reset to no image	Picture Gallery Reset to no image	Picture Gallery Reset to no image
"Tips and Planning" page:	Default image:	Rollover image: (Optional)	Selected image: (Optional)
	Picture Gallery	Picture Gallery	Picture Gallery
"Getting Started" pa	age: Default image:	Rollover image: (Optional)	Selected image: (Optional)
	Picture Gallery	Picture Gallery	Picture Gallery

To add your own image, click the **Picture Gallery** button. SiteBuilder only supports the following image types:

- JPEG (*.jpeg, *.jpg)
- GIF (*.gif)
- Compressed ZIP archives (*.zip) containing your image(s)

Step 5 Click Done to save your changes when you are finished.

Adding keyword and description MetaTags

Metatags help describe your website to search engines and may help to improve your website's search engine rankings. They are easy to add to your SiteBuilder web pages.

Step 1 Click on the Site Organiser button at the bottom of the page.

Step 2 Click Page Properties for the page you want to add metatags to.

Pages shown in the Navigation Bar: The pages shown below are included in the Navigation Bar that appears on every web site page. To hide a page from displaying on the Navigation Bar, or to add meta tags to your web page, click the Page Properties link for the page you want to change. File Name Page Options Design Page Name Welcome to my personal website 🖌 🖬 index.html

All of this site's pages are included in the Navigation Bar.

- Step 3 Scroll down and enter a description for the page in the Description Meta Tag text field. This text is displayed by most search engines under the page name in their search results.
- Enter your keywords, separated by commas, in the Keyword Meta Tag text field. Step 4 There is a limit of 200 characters.
- Click **Done** to save your changes. Step 5

Edit Page Page Prop

Publishing your site

When you are ready to make your new site available on the internet you need to publish it. You can preview your site before you publish it, which will give you an idea of exactly how your site will appear when published.

Previewing your site

To preview your site, simply press the **Preview Site** icon at the foot of the page when editing your website.



Your site will appear in another window exactly as it will appear when published. However, no-one else will have access to the site until it's published.

Publishing the site

When you are ready to publish your new site, or changes to your existing site, simply click Publish to Web at the bottom of the page when editing your site.



The site may take several minutes to publish.

Working with multiple sites

With SiteBuilder you can publish multiple sites to subfolders on your domain name. This allows you to create micro-sites with different appearances, navigation, and content.

Creating a new site

- Step 1 Click on All My Sites at the foot of the page to see a list of your existing sites.
- Step 2 Select a new site template from the Create a new site drop down list and click Go.

All My Sites for sitebuilderdemo1-usl800 Your domain name: http://www.ralphs-other-domain.com/				
Click a site name to ea	Click a site name to edit, or click a URL to view a published site.			
Ralphs personal website Site settings Last published 11/25/09 Site settings View published site: http://www.ralphs-other-domain.com/				
Create a new site:	Choose a template			
Help & Tips	Small Business			
 <u>Support Central:</u> Ac (FAQ's), Tutorials or <u>Guide for New Users</u> <u>Rate Your SiteBuilder</u> <u>Pictures not displayir</u> 	Computer Services My Personal Site General Photo Album Business Services General Services Blank (Start From Scratch) Choose from the gallery	requently Asked Questions <u>elp</u>		

Step 3 The options that follow will depend on the template you selected. You will be asked to enter information specific to your new website, such as your company name and address.

Publishing another site

The first site you publish in SiteBuilder will publish to your domain name. Any subsequent sites that are published will be located in subfolders which you can specify.

- Step 1 Click on Publish to Web to publish your site.
- Step 2 Enter a name for your site into the URL text field and click Publish now! The subfolder is part of the web address people will type to visit your site.

For example, if you enter "*subfolder*" in the text field, people would visit your site at *http://www.yourdomain.com/subfolder*.

Publish this web site

Preview your web site.

Once you press the "Publish Now" button, your site will be visible on the Web. Is your web site ready to "go live"? I'd like to preview my site one more time.

Select your web site address.



Site Builder allows you to create multiple web sites, each with their own web site address. You have already published a web site to your base URL, http://www.ralphs-other-domain.com/. Enter a subdirectory name to provide this web site with a unique URL.

It's sometimes helpful to use a short name or phrase that describes what your web site is about. The name you designate may not have spaces or special characters.

Your URL will be: http://www.ralphs-other-domain.com/ hobbies



Note: The subfolder should contain only letters and numbers. Make sure there are no spaces or special characters.

Your website may take several minutes to publish.

Promoting your site

If you want to get the maximum possible potential from your website a little time and planning can really help you build your online presence and develop your brand.

One of the greatest challenges you will face with your new website is trying to encourage your customers to visit you. Unfortunately there is no guaranteed method for making your website popular, but there are a number of techniques you can use to improve your search engine rankings.

There are several ways to improve your website's visibility in SiteBuilder...

Choose your keywords carefully

You can specify your own keywords on each page, which search engines will use to index your site.

Choosing keywords for your site always appears easier than it actually is. The first thing to consider is what search terms people may use to search for your site. It is always best to ask a few friends what keywords they may use as quite often you will find them different than the keywords you were expecting. The other thing to take into consideration is competition from other websites. Some keywords are hotly contested by many of the largest companies in the world.

If you ran a second hand book store in Edinburgh for example, initially you may want to concentrate on the keyword "books". However you will also be in competition with books.google.com, barnesandnoble.com, nytimes.com, abebooks.com and amazon.com. While you are technically on a level playing field with these big companies, they can afford to hire teams of dedicated specialists working on keeping their rankings as high as possible. If you want to spend some time running your business then it may be better to concentrate on other areas.

"Books" is a very generic term encompassing a number of products that you may not supply anyway, so by specializing with your keywords you will be able to compete in a less heavily contested market for services that more match your services. The keyword phrase "rare books" or "classic books" will be easier to work with when trying to achieve high rankings in these slightly more specialized searches.

Choosing your keywords is always a balance between having keywords that customers use, and keywords that you can compete with in the market. If we take the previous example for instance, we may have considered "precious books" as a good keyword. This would be very easy to attain high search engine ranking for, but what's the point in having a high ranking for "precious books" if no-one will use these keywords to make a search?

To find out how to add your keywords, see the chapter *Adding keyword and description MetaTags* on page 32.

Add a Site Map

A site map is simply a page with links to all other pages on your site. Adding a site map to your site not only helps your customers find their way around, but it also helps search engines index and rank your pages. A search engine robot will examine your site, look for the site map, and will follow any links it finds. It will mark links directly on your website with high importance, encouraging the search engine to index your entire site, and therefore potentially improving your search position.

You can add a Site Map to any page through SiteBuilder's Site Add-Ons. See the chapter Site Add-ons on page 18.

Promote your site

SiteBuilder includes a handy feature to help you let your customers know about your newly published site.

Step 1 From the *All my sites* page (if you are not on this page click the **All my sites** icon at the foot of the page) click **Announce your site**.



Step 2 Choose the site you want to promote. You will only be able to select your site if it is already published.

Announce Your Site Please choose one of your published sites.		
Site Name	Last Published Date	Choose
Ralphs personal website	11/25/09	Choose

Step 3 Enter the email addresses of the people you would like to notify of your new site, separated by a comma.

Enter your name and email address, and the message you would like to send to your customers.

Announce My Site

Use this form to send an email with a link to your web site. Just complete the information below and click "send".

To:	bob@bobsdomain.co.uk, dad@ralphsdomain.com
	To invite more than one person, separate addresses with a comma.
From:	Ralph
	Please enter your name.
	ralph@ralphs-other-domain.com
	Please enter your email address.
Subject:	Come visit my web site!
Message:	You can see my site here: http://www.ralphs-other- domain.com/
(Send me a notification when email is sent.

Step 4 Click Send to send the mail.

Troubleshooting

This chapter contains some troubleshooting advice if you encounter problems whilst using SiteBuilder.

Text is not displaying properly

Pre-formatted text copied from MS Word (or other word processor application) and pasted into SiteBuilder is sometimes incorrectly formatted on your SiteBuilder web pages.

While it is often useful to paste pre-formatted text into your SiteBuilder web page, this sometimes causes problems.

SiteBuilder is designed to accept pre-formatted text, including tables, from applications like MS Word. Pre-formatted text pasted from these applications contains "hidden" XML and HTML references (tags). Problems are caused by malformed code in the text that is pasted.

Similar problems will occur when you attempt to paste raw JavaScript, HTML or XML

that is malformed. The malformed code causes errors in the SiteBuilder application, resulting in the incorrect formatting.

Where your pre-formatted copy causes problems, the safer option is to remove the formatting and paste the plain text into SiteBuilder. Any copy which could contain malformed code, should be treated in the following manner.

First paste the text into an ASCII text editor, like notepad. Save as a text only file and close the file.

Re-open the file, copy the text (which you should now see without any formatting) and paste it into your SiteBuilder web page.

Images take a long time to load

While SiteBuilder is able to display your images at different sizes, it is not able to resize the image file itself. If images are taking a long time to load on your pages, you should check the size of the image files themselves.

It is good practice to ensure your images are optimised for the internet before you upload them to your SiteBuilder gallery. To do this you will need some image editing software such as PhotoShop or PaintShop Pro. Here are some tips to help you optimise your images for your site.

- Resize the images to the exact size you want them to appear on the page, rather than uploading the image and selecting the size through SiteBuilder.
- Save the file using the best format for the picture type. The main file formats used on the web are GIF and JPEG, which use different compression methods. Typically JPEG images are best for photographs, whilst GIF images are best for drawn imagery, diagrams, and icons.
- If your image editing software supports it, try to optimise your images for the web. You can usually reduce the quality of the images slightly in order to also reduce the file size.

Quick tip: If you don't have any image editing software already, there are plenty of free products available. Just perform a web search for "*image editing software*".

Pictures are not displaying correctly

SiteBuilder uses a picture gallery to arrange and organise the pictures on your website. There are two likely reasons for images that do not display properly: the filenames contain invalid characters, or the gallery needs to be reset.

The filename may contain invalid characters

Make sure that the filename of any images contains only numbers and letters. Spaces, full stops, and special characters (such as !"£\$%^&*) are likely to cause problems to your site both within SiteBuilder and when published to a web server.

The gallery may need to be reset

- Step 1 Log into SiteBuilder. If you are already logged in click All My Sites at the foot of the page.
- Step 2 Click the link marked Pictures not displaying properly? Click here for help in the Help & Tips box.

Help & Tips

- <u>Support Central</u>: Access our Tips of the Day, Frequently Asked Questions (FAQ's), Tutorials or Customer Support Staff.
- Guide for New Users
- <u>Rate Your SiteBuilder Experience</u>
 <u>Pictures not displaying properly? Click here for help</u>

Step 3Click OK to reset your picture gallery, then Finish to close the tool, a dialogue box
may appear, asking if you want to close the window, press Yes.

Step 4Click on your site in the list, and then click on the Publish to Web button at the
bottom of the page to re-publish your site.

This may take several minutes to complete.

SiteBuilder gives a "Java.lang.NullPointerException" error when using a web form

SiteBuilder allows you to create custom forms on your website that allow people to submit information to you. However, you may receive the following error when submitting the form on your website:

Java.lang.NullPointerException

This problem is often caused by invalid characters within the form. The names of the form items built with SiteBuilder cannot use the following characters:

- Non-alphanumeric characters (e.g. £, %, &)
- Spaces
- New lines

If you are receiving a Java.lang.NullPointerException error, you should log into SiteBuilder and check for any invalid characters. When you have removed the invalid characters republish your site and try using the form again.